

**TITLE 17, California Code of Regulations
Division 1, Chapter 5, Subchapter 4.0,
Group 1.5, Article 1**

(1) Amend Section 30108 to read as follows:

§ 30108. Registration Requirement.

Every person possessing a reportable source of radiation shall register with the Department in accordance with the provisions of Sections ~~30110 through 30146~~this Group.

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~208 and 25814~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections ~~25815~~ 115060, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(2) Adopt Section 30108.1 to read as follows:

§ 30108.1. Registration and General Provisions for Persons Possessing Devices Under Sections 30192.1 and 30192.6.

(a) A person required to register pursuant to sections 30192.1(d)(1) or 30192.6(b)(1) shall, within 30 calendar days of taking possession of a device or product, submit to the Department the following:

(1) Legal name, mailing address, and telephone number of the registering person. If renewing registration, the registration number previously issued to the registrant shall also be included;

(2) For each device subject to section 30192.1:

(A) The manufacturer's name, serial number, model number, the radioisotope, and the radioisotope's activity (as indicated on the device's label). For devices used in a fixed location, the physical address of each location where a device is used and the total number of devices at each location shall be submitted. For portable devices, the physical address of each primary place of storage and the total number of devices stored at each location shall be submitted. If renewing registration and there has been no change in the previously indicated devices, indicate that no change has occurred;

(B) Name, title, and telephone number, if different than the number specified in subsection (a)(1), of the individual appointed pursuant to section 30192.1(d)(15);

(C) Name and license number of the distributor from whom the device was obtained;
and

(D) Signature and date of signature of the individual identified in subsection (a)(2)(B), attesting to the following statement:

"I [insert name as it appears in response to subsection (a)(2)(B)] attest that I am aware of the requirements of the general license specified in section 30192.1 of title 17, California Code of Regulations, and that the information provided concerning the device or product has been verified through a physical inventory and checking of label information."

(3) For persons possessing devices subject to section 30192.6:

(A) A statement that the registrant has, pursuant to section 30192.6(b)(3), developed, implemented, and will continue to maintain procedures designed to establish physical control over the depleted uranium described in section 30192.6(a), and designed also

so as to prevent transfer of such depleted uranium in any form, including metal scrap, to persons not authorized to receive the depleted uranium; and

(B) Name, title, and telephone number, if different than the number specified in subsection (a)(1), of the individual appointed pursuant to section 30192.6(b)(4);

(4) Except for persons possessing devices pursuant to section 30192.6, the registration fee specified in section 30145.

(b) Each person shall renew registration annually on or before the current registration's expiration date, by submitting to the Department all required items in subsection (a).

(c) In lieu of the requirements in section 30115, within 30 calendar days of the occurrence of the event, each person registered pursuant to this section shall notify the Department of any change in the information submitted in response to subsection (a), including discontinuance of use of a device or product.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code.
Reference: Sections 115000, 115060, 115065, 115230, 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(3) Amend Section 30115 to read as follows:

§ 30115. Report of Change.

Except for persons subject to section 30108.1, tThe registrant shall report in writing to the Department, within 30 days, any change in: registrant's name, registrant's address, location of the installation, or receipt, sale, transfer, disposal, or discontinuance of use of any reportable source of radiation.

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~208 and 25814~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections ~~25815~~ 115060, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

Group 1.5
Article 2

(4) Amend Section 30125 to read as follows:

§ 30125. Excluded Material and Devices.

The following devices and materials do not require registration:

(a) *No change to text.*

(b) All radioactive materials except as specified in ~~Section~~sections 30192.1 and 30192.6.

Note: Authority Cited: Sections ~~208 and 25811(c)~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections ~~25815~~ 115060(c), 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

Group 1.5
Article 4

(5) Amend Section 30145 to read as follows:

§ 30145. Registration Fees.

(a) *No change to text.*

(b) *No change to text.*

(c) For registration or renewal of registration as a general licensee pursuant to section 30192.1, the fee shall be \$70.00 for each device in possession, except that persons possessing such devices under a specific license shall be exempt from this fee.

(de) Except as provided in subsection (de), initial registration shall be valid for a period of one year.

(de) The initial registration period for a reportable source of radiation being registered by a person who has a reportable source of radiation already registered with the Department shall be coterminous with the existing registration.

(ef) Any fees collected for a radiation machine or a device for any registration period shall be transferred to any replacement radiation machine or device for the remainder of the registration period.

(fg) For initial registration or renewal of registration, the fees shall be \$214.00 annually for each high priority radiation machine, \$172.00 annually for each medium priority radiation machine and, except as provided in section 30145.1, \$475.00 annually for each special priority radiation machine. Where the initial registration period is less than one year pursuant to subsection (de), the initial registration fee shall be prorated, based on the priority classification and number of full months in the initial registration period in accordance with the following formula:

$$\text{Initial registration Fee} = A \times [B / (12 \text{ months})]$$

Where:

A = Annual fee as specified above, dollars per year

B = Number of full months remaining in coterminous period

(gh) *No change to text.*

(hi) *No change to text.*

(ij) *No change to text.*

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~100275~~ 114975, 115000, 115060, 115065, 115080, and 115085 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114980, 115065, 115080, 115085, and 115165, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

Group 2

Article 4. Licenses

(6) Amend Section 30190 to read as follows:

§ 30190. Types of Licenses.

(a) Department licenses for radioactive material are of two types: general and specific.

(b) General licenses provided in this regulation are effective without the filing of an application with the ~~d~~Department or the issuance of licensing documents to particular persons, except that any person to whom a general license is issued pursuant to sections 30192.1 and 30192.6 shall be subject to the registration requirements specified in section 30108.1.

(c) Specific licenses are issued to named persons upon approval of an application filed pursuant to this regulation. A specific license issued by the ~~d~~Department is required by any person to possess any radioactive material in this state, except as otherwise provided in ~~S~~sections 30180, ~~30181, 30182,~~ 30191, 30192, 30192.1, 30192.2, 30192.3, 30192.4, 30192.5, 30192.6, or 30225, or 30226.

(d) Every specific and general license is subject to all applicable provisions of this regulation and, except as otherwise specified, to the provisions of Group 3 of this subchapter (Standards for Protection Against Radiation).

Note: Authority cited: Sections 114970, 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114970, 115060, 115165, 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(7) Amend Section 30191 to read as follows:

§ 30191. General Licenses-Source Material.

(a) A general license is hereby issued to commercial firms, educational institutions, and medical institutions and government agencies, authorizing the possession, ~~and use, and transfer~~ of not more than 15 pounds of source material at any one time, for research, development, educational, commercial or operational purposes. Persons authorized to possess, ~~and use, or transfer~~ source material, pursuant to this general license, may not receive more than a total of 150 pounds of source material in any one calendar year. ~~Any person shall, w~~With respect to such source material, any person shall be exempt from the provisions of Group 3 of this subchapter, except for ~~sections~~ Sections 30253, 30254 and 30293(a), unless such person also possesses source material under a specific license.

(b) A general license described in ~~Section 30191~~ subsection (a) shall not authorize human use; ~~or the use in any device or article which is intended to be placed on or in the human body; or the use of any instrument or apparatus (including component parts and accessories thereto) intended for human use.~~

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~400275 and~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114965, 114970, 114985(g), 115000, 115060, 115165, ~~and 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052~~, Health and Safety Code.

(8) Amend Section 30192 to read as follows:

§ 30192. General Licenses—Static Elimination or Ion Generation Devices.

(a) A general license is hereby issued to any person, authorizing possession of radioactive material incorporated in any of the following items when manufactured, tested, and labeled pursuant to a specific license, which authorizes distribution to general licensees:

(1) Static eliminators containing sealed sources of up to 500 microcuries of ~~polonium~~ 210 polonium-210 per device.

(2) Air ionization devices containing, as sealed sources, up to 500 microcuries of ~~polonium-210~~ polonium-210 or 50 millicuries of ~~hydrogen-3~~ tritium per device.

(b) Possession of radioactive material listed in this section is exempt from the requirements of Group 3 of this subchapter, except for sections 30254 and 30293(a) of this subchapter and sections 20.2201 and 20.2202 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 20, incorporated by reference in section 30253 ~~Sections 30253, 30254, and 30293(a).~~

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~400275 and~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114965, 114970, 114985(g), 115060, 115165, ~~and~~ 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(9) Amend Section 30192.1 to read as follows:

§ 30192.1. General Licenses—Gauging and Controlling.

~~(a) A general license is hereby issued to commercial and industrial firms and research, educational and medical institutions, individuals in the conduct of their business, and government agencies to possess and use radioactive material when contained in devices designed and manufactured for the purpose of detecting, measuring, gauging or controlling thickness, density, level, interface location, radiation, leakage, qualitative or quantitative chemical composition or for producing light or an ionized atmosphere when such devices are manufactured pursuant to a specific license authorizing distribution to general licensees provided that each such device:~~

~~(1) Is labeled in accordance with the provisions of the specific license which authorizes distribution of the device;~~

~~(2) Bears a label containing the following or substantially similar statement:~~

~~"The receipt, possession, use and transfer of this device, Model _____, Serial No. _____, are subject to a general license or equivalent and the regulations of the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission or of a state with which the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission has entered into an agreement for the exercise of regulatory authority. Removal of this label is prohibited.~~

~~CAUTION—RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL~~

~~_____

(Name of Supplier)"~~

~~The model, serial number and name of supplier may be omitted from this label provided they are elsewhere specified in labeling affixed to the device; and~~

~~(3) Is installed on the premises of the general licensee by a person having a specific license which authorized installation of such devices when required by the label on the device.~~

~~(b) Persons who possess a device pursuant to the general license contained in Section 30192.1(a) shall:~~

~~(1) Within 30 days of the receipt of any such device, register with the Department and within 30 days of transfer of any such device, notify the Department in accordance with the provisions of Group 1.5 of this subchapter (Registration of Radiation Sources).~~

~~(2) Not transfer, abandon or dispose of the device, except by transfer to a person holding a specific license to receive such device.~~

~~(3) Transfer the device to another general licensee only;~~

~~(A) Where the device remains in use at a particular location. In such case the transferrer shall give the transferee a copy of this section and any safety documents identified in the label of the device, or;~~

~~(B) Where the device is held in storage in the original shipping container at its intended location of use prior to initial use by the general licensee.~~

~~(4) Assure that all labels affixed to the device at the time of receipt and bearing the statement, "Removal of this label is prohibited" are maintained thereon and comply with all instructions contained in such labels.~~

~~(5) Have the device tested for leakage of radioactive material and proper operation of the on-off mechanism and indicator, if any, at the time of installation of the device or~~

~~replacement of radioactive material on the premises of the general licensee and thereafter at no longer than six month intervals or at such longer intervals as may be specified in the specific license which authorized distribution of the device to general licenses. Devices containing only krypton need not be tested for leakage. Devices containing only tritium or not more than 100 uCi of other beta and/or gama emitting material or 10 uCi of alpha emitting material and devices held in storage in the original shipping container prior to initial installation need not be tested for any reason.~~

~~(6) Have the test required by Section 30192.1(b)(5) and all other services involving the radioactive material, its shielding and containment performed:~~

~~(A) In accordance with the instructions provided by the label; or~~

~~(B) By a person holding an appropriate license therefor.~~

~~(7) Maintain records of all tests performed on the devices as required under this section, including the dates and results of these tests and the names and addresses of the persons conducting the test.~~

~~(8) Upon occurrence of a failure of or damage to, or any indication of a possible failure of or damage to the shielding or containment of the radioactive material, or of the on-off mechanism or indicator, immediately suspend operation of the device until it has been repaired by or disposed of to a person holding a specific license therefor.~~

~~(9) Within 30 days after the occurrence of a failure of or damage to the shielding or containment of radioactive material or the on-off mechanism or indicator or upon the detection of 0.005 microcuries or more of removable radioactive material, furnish to the Department a complete description of the device (manufacturer, type, serial number) and a brief description of the event and the remedial action taken.~~

~~(c) Persons who possess a device pursuant to the general license contained in Section 30192.1(a) shall with respect thereto be exempt from the requirements of Group 3 of this subchapter except for Sections 30253, 30254, and 30293(a).~~

(a) A general license is hereby issued to commercial and industrial firms, research, educational and medical institutions, individuals in the conduct of their business, and government agencies, to acquire, receive, possess, use or transfer, in accordance with this section, radioactive material contained in devices designed and manufactured for the purpose of detecting, measuring, gauging or controlling thickness, density, level, interface location, radiation, leakage, or qualitative or quantitative chemical composition, or for producing light or an ionized atmosphere.

(b) The general license issued pursuant to subsection (a) applies only to radioactive material contained in devices which have been manufactured or initially transferred and labeled in accordance with the provisions of:

(1) A specific license, which authorizes distribution of the device, issued by the Department pursuant to section 30195(d);

(2) An equivalent specific license issued by an Agreement State other than this State; or

(3) A specific license issued by the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) under section 32.51 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations (10 CFR), Part 32.

(c) Devices described in subsection (a) shall have been received from one of the specific licensees described in subsection (b), or through a transfer made pursuant to subsection (d)(12).

(d) Persons who acquire, receive, possess, use or transfer a device under the general license issued pursuant to subsection (a) shall:

(1) Register and renew registration pursuant to section 30108.1 any devices containing at least 10 millicuries (mCi) of cesium-137, 0.1 mCi of strontium-90, 1 mCi of cobalt-60, or 1 mCi of americium-241 or any other transuranic (i.e., an element with atomic number greater than uranium (92)), based on the activity indicated on the label. The licensee shall be subject to the reporting requirement in section 30108.1(c) for such devices;

(2) Ensure that all labels affixed to the device at the time of receipt and bearing a statement that removal of the label is prohibited are maintained thereon, and comply with all instructions and precautions provided by such labels;

(3) Ensure that the device is tested for leakage of radioactive material and that the on-off mechanism and indicator, if any, operate as designed. These tests shall be performed at intervals no longer than six months or at such other intervals as are specified in the device's label. However:

(A) Devices containing only krypton need not be tested for leakage; and

(B) Devices containing only tritium, or not more than 100 microcuries (uCi) of other beta and/or gamma emitting material or 10 uCi of alpha emitting material, and devices held in storage in the original shipping container prior to initial installation, need not be tested for any purpose;

(4) Ensure that the tests required by subsection (d)(3) and any testing, installation, servicing, and removal from installation involving the radioactive material, its shielding, or containment, are performed:

(A) In accordance with the instructions provided by the device's labels; or

(B) By a person holding a specific license issued by the Department or an Agreement State other than this State, authorizing the licensee to perform those activities;

(5) Maintain records showing compliance with the requirements of subsections (d)(3) and (d)(4), to include the results of tests, the dates of performance of tests, and the names of the persons performing testing, installing, servicing, and removing from the installation radioactive material, its shielding, or containment. The licensee shall retain records of tests required by:

(A) Subsection (d)(3) for three years after the next required test for leakage and test of the on-off mechanism and indicator is performed, or until the sealed source is transferred or disposed of; and

(B) Subsection (d)(4) for three years from the date of the recorded event or other test, or until the device is transferred or disposed of;

(6) Immediately suspend operation of the device if there is a failure of, or damage to, or any indication of a possible failure of or damage to, the shielding of the radioactive material or the on-off mechanism or indicator, or upon the detection of 0.005 uCi or more of removable radioactive material. The device shall not be operated until it has been repaired by the manufacturer or a person holding a specific license issued by the Department, the NRC, or an Agreement State other than this State, authorizing the licensee to repair the device. The device, and any radioactive material from the device, may only be disposed of in accordance with subsection (d)(10);

(7) Within 30 calendar days of an event specified in subsection (d)(6), submit a report to the Department containing:

(A) A brief description of the event and the remedial action taken; and

(B) If removable radioactive material greater than or equal to 0.005 uCi has been detected, or failure of or damage to a sealed source is likely to result in contamination of the premises or the environs, a plan to ensure that the premises and environs are acceptable for unrestricted use;

(8) Not abandon the device;

(9) Not export the device except in accordance with an export license issued by the NRC pursuant to 10 CFR, Part 110. This provision shall not be construed to incorporate by reference 10 CFR, Part 110;

(10) Transfer or dispose of the device only:

(A) By export as provided by subsection (d)(9);

(B) By transfer to another general licensee as authorized in subsection (d)(12); or

(C) After obtaining written Department approval authorizing transfer or disposal to any other specific licensee not specifically identified in subsection (d)(10)(A) or (B), except that a holder of a specific license may transfer a device for possession and use under its own specific license without prior approval, if the holder:

1. Verifies that the specific license authorizes the possession and use, or pursuant to section 30194.2 applies for and obtains an amendment to the license authorizing the possession and use;

2. Removes, alters, covers, or clearly and unambiguously augments the existing label (otherwise required by subsection (d)(2)), so that the device is labeled in compliance with section 20.1904 of 10 CFR, Part 20, incorporated by reference in section 30253; however, the manufacturer, model number, and serial number shall be retained;

3. Obtains the manufacturer's or initial transferor's information concerning maintenance that would be applicable under the specific license (such as leak testing procedures); and

4. Reports the transfer under subsection (d)(11);

(11) Within 30 calendar days after transfer of a device pursuant to subsection (d)(10), submit a report to the Department containing the:

(A) Identification of the device by manufacturer's (or initial transferor's) name, model number, and serial number;

(B) Name, address, and license number of the person receiving the device (license number not applicable if exported); and

(C) Date of the transfer;

(12) Transfer the device to another general licensee only if:

(A) The device remains in use at a particular location. In this case, the transferor shall give the transferee a copy of this section, sections 30108.1, 30254, 30257 and 30293(a) of this subchapter, sections 20.2201 and 20.2202 of 10 CFR, Part 20, incorporated by reference in section 30253, and any safety documents identified in the label of the device. Within 30 calendar days of the transfer, the transferor shall submit a report to the Department containing:

1. The manufacturer's (or initial transferor's) name;
2. The model number and the serial number of the device transferred;
3. The transferee's name and mailing address for the location of use; and
4. The name, title, and phone number of the responsible individual identified by the transferee pursuant to subsection (d)(15); or

(B) The device is held in storage by an intermediate person in the original shipping container at its intended location of use, prior to initial use by a general licensee;

(13) Comply with sections 20.2201 and 20.2202 of 10 CFR, Part 20, incorporated by reference in section 30253, for reporting radiation incidents, theft or loss of licensed material, but shall be exempt from other requirements in Group 3 of this subchapter, except for sections 30257 and 30293(a);

(14) Upon Department request, provide information relating to the general license within 30 calendar days of the date of the request, or other time specified in the request. If the general licensee is unable to provide the requested information within the allotted time, a request for extending that time shall be submitted prior to the end of the allotted time, and the request for an extension of time shall include a written justification as to why the allotted time should be extended;

(15) Appoint an individual responsible for having knowledge of required actions and authority for taking required actions, so as to comply with this section and all sections cited or referenced within this section. Appointment of the responsible individual does not relieve the general licensee of any of its own responsibility for complying with the Act and this subchapter; and

(16) Not hold devices that are not in use for longer than two years. If devices with shutters are not being used, the shutter shall be locked in the closed position. The testing required by subsection (d)(3) need not be performed during the period of

storage. However, when devices are put back into service or transferred to another person, and have not been tested within the required test interval, they shall be tested for leakage before use or transfer, and the shutter tested before use. Devices kept in standby for future use are excluded from the two-year time limit if the general licensee performs quarterly physical inventories of these devices while they are in standby.

(e) The general license issued pursuant to this section does not authorize the manufacture or import of devices containing radioactive material.

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~400275~~ and 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114965, 114970, 114985(g), 115060, 115165, 115230, and 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(10) Amend Section 30192.2 to read as follows:

§ 30192.2. General Licenses--Aircraft Safety Devices.

(a) A general license is hereby issued to any person to possess and use tritium or ~~promethium-147~~promethium-147 contained within luminous safety devices designed for use in aircraft, provided that each such device contains not more than 10 curies of tritium or 300 millicuries of ~~promethium-147~~promethium-147 and provided further that each such device has been manufactured, assembled or imported in accordance with a specific license authorizing distribution to general licensees.

(b) The general license ~~contained in Section 30192.2~~issued pursuant to subsection (a) does not authorize:

- (1) The manufacture, assembly, disassembly, repair or disposal of such devices;
- (2) The use of such devices other than in aircraft; and
- (3) The possession of ~~promethium-147~~promethium-147 in instrument dials.

(c) Persons who possess a device ~~pursuant to~~under the general license ~~contained in Section 30192.2~~issued pursuant to subsection (a) shall, with respect thereto, be exempt from the requirements of Group 3 of this subchapter except for sections 30254 and 30293(a) of this subchapter and sections 20.2201 and 20.2202 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 20, incorporated by reference in section 30253~~Sections 30253, 30254, and 30293(a).~~

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~400275 and~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114965, 114970, 114985(g), 115000, 115060, 115165, ~~and~~ 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(11) Amend Section 30192.3 to read as follows:

§ 30192.3. General Licenses—Calibration or Reference Sources.

(a) A general license is hereby issued to persons who hold either a specific license issued by the Department for any radioactive material, or a specific license issued by the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission for any special nuclear material, to possess americium-241, ~~or~~ plutonium, or radium-226 in the form of calibration or reference sources. Calibration or reference sources shall be manufactured in accordance with the specifications contained in an appropriate specific license, which authorizes distribution under a general license. Each source possessed pursuant to the general license or its storage container shall bear a label, which includes the information required in the following statement:

"The receipt, possession, use and transfer of this source, Model _____, Serial No. _____, are subject to a general license or its equivalent, and are further subject to the regulations of the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission or ~~of~~ a state with which the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission has entered into an agreement for the exercise of regulatory authority. Removal of this label is prohibited.

CAUTION--RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL--THIS SOURCE CONTAINS (AMERICIUM-241 ~~-241, OR PLUTONIUM,~~ or RADIUM-226, whichever is appropriate). DO NOT TOUCH RADIOACTIVE PORTION OF THIS SOURCE.

"_____
(Name of Manufacturer or Importer)

(b) Persons who possess a source pursuant to under the general license ~~contained in Section 30192.3~~ issued pursuant to subsection (a) shall:

(1) Not have, at any one time, at any one location of storage or use, more than 5 microcuries of americium-241, ~~and~~ 5 microcuries of plutonium, or 5 microcuries of radium-226 contained in such sources.

(2) Not transfer, abandon or dispose of such sources, except by transfer to a person authorized by a license to receive the source.

(3) With respect to each such source when not in use, store the source in a closed container adequately designed and constructed to contain any of the radioactive material in ~~case~~ the event the source is ruptured or leaks.

(4) Not use such source for any purpose other than calibration of radiation detectors or standardization of other sources.

(c) Persons who possess a source pursuant to under the general license contained in ~~Section 30192.3~~ issued pursuant to subsection (a) shall, with respect thereto, be exempt from the requirement of Group 3 of this subchapter, except for sections 30254 and 30293(a) of this subchapter and sections 20.2201 and 20.2202 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 20, incorporated by reference in section 30253 ~~Sections 30253, 30254, and 30293(a).~~

(d) The general license issued pursuant to ~~in paragraph~~ subsection (a) of this section does not authorize the manufacture, import, or export of calibration or reference sources containing americium-241, or plutonium, or radium-226.

Note: Authority cited: ~~Sections 400275 and~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114965, 114970, 114985(g), 115000, 115060, 115165, 115230, and 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(12) Amend Section 30192.4 to read as follows:

§ 30192.4. General Licenses—Ice Detection Devices.

(a) A general license is hereby issued to any person to possess ~~strontium-90~~strontium-90 contained in ice detection devices, provided that each device contains not more than 50 microcuries of ~~strontium-90~~strontium-90, and provided further that each device has been manufactured or imported in accordance with a specific license which authorizes distribution under a general license.

(b) Persons who possess a device ~~pursuant to~~ under the general license ~~contained in Section 30192.4~~issued pursuant to subsection (a) shall:

(1) Assure that all labels affixed to the device at the time of receipt, and which bear a statement that prohibits removal of the labels, are maintained thereon; and

(2) Immediately ~~Upon~~ occurrence of damage, discontinue use of the device until it has been inspected, tested for leakage, and repaired by a person holding a specific license authorizing such testing or repair.

(c) Persons who possess a device ~~pursuant to~~ under the general license ~~contained in Section 30192.4~~issued pursuant to subsection (a) shall, with respect thereto, be exempt from the requirements of Group 3 of this subchapter, except for sections 30254 and 30293(a) of this subchapter and sections 20.2201 and 20.2202 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 20, incorporated by reference in section 30253~~Sections 30253, 30254 and 30293(a).~~

(d) This general license does not authorize the manufacture, assembly, disassembly or repair of ice detection devices containing ~~strontium-90~~strontium-90.

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~400275 and~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114965, 114970, 114985(g), 115060, 115165, 115230, and 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(13) Amend Section 30192.5 to read as follows:

§ 30192.5. General Licenses—In Vitro Testing.

(a) A general license is hereby issued to any physician, veterinarian, clinical laboratory or hospital to possess and use radioactive material in prepackaged units described in ~~Section 30236, Schedule B, Table I,~~ for in vitro clinical testing, not exceeding the following:

<u>Radionuclide</u>	<u>Maximum uCi* per unit</u>	<u>Maximum uCi total</u>
<u>Tritium.....</u>	<u>50</u>	<u>2,000</u>
<u>Carbon-14.....</u>	<u>10</u>	<u>2,000</u>
<u>Iron-59.....</u>	<u>20</u>	<u>200</u>
<u>Selenium-75.....</u>	<u>10</u>	<u>200</u>
<u>Cobalt-57.....</u>	<u>10</u>	<u>200</u>
<u>Iodine-125 or Iodine-131.....</u>	<u>10</u>	<u>200</u>
<u>Mock Iodine-125</u>		
<u>Reference Source</u>		
<u> Iodine-129</u>	<u>0.05</u>	-
<u> Americium-241.....</u>	<u>0.005</u>	-

* microcurie (uCi)

(b) The general licensee shall not possess or use radioactive material ~~pursuant to~~ under the general license contained in this section issued pursuant to subsection (a):

(1) Except as prepackaged units which are labeled in accordance with the provisions of a specific license issued by the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission or a state with which the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission has entered into an agreement for the exercise of regulatory authority; and

(2) Unless the prepackaged unit bears a label or is accompanied by a package insert containing the following or a substantially similar statement:

"This radioactive material may be received and used only by physicians, veterinarians, clinical laboratories or hospitals, and only for in vitro clinical or laboratory tests not involving internal or external administration of the material or the radiation therefrom to human beings or animals. The receipt, possession, use and transfer of this material is subject to the regulations and general license of the United States Nuclear Regulatory

Commission or ~~the~~ a state with which the Commission has entered into an agreement for the exercise of regulatory authority."

(c) Persons who possess radioactive material pursuant to under the general license contained in ~~Section 30192.5~~ issued pursuant to subsection (a), shall, with respect thereto, be exempt from the requirements of Group 3 of this subchapter, except for ~~Sections 30253, 30254, and 30293(a)~~ that persons using Mock Iodine-125 shall comply with sections 20.2001, 20.2201 and 20.2202 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 20, incorporated by reference in section 30253.

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~400275 and~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114965, 114970, 114985(g), 115000, 115060, 115165, 115230, ~~and~~ 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(14) Amend Section 30192.6 to read as follows:

§ 30192.6. General Licenses--Depleted Uranium.

(a) A general license is hereby issued to any person to possess and use depleted uranium contained in industrial products or devices, for the purpose of providing a concentrated mass of the product or device, when such products or devices are manufactured pursuant to a specific license authorizing distribution to general licensees.

(b) Persons who possess depleted uranium pursuant to under the general license contained in ~~Section 30192.6~~ issued pursuant to subsection (a) shall:

(1) ~~Within 30 days of receipt of any such product or device, register with the Department and within 30 days of transfer of any such device, notify the Department in accordance with provisions of Group 1.5 of this subchapter~~ Register in accordance with section 30108.1;

(2) Not introduce such depleted uranium into any chemical, physical or metallurgical treatment or process, other than ~~except~~ a treatment or process for repair or restoration of any plating or other covering of the depleted uranium;

(3) Develop, implement and Mmaintain procedures designed to establish physical control over such depleted uranium in order to prevent its unauthorized use or transfer in any form, including metal scrap;

(4) Appoint an individual responsible for having knowledge of required actions and authority for taking required actions, so as to comply with this section and all sections cited or referenced within this section. Appointment of the responsible individual does not relieve the general licensee of any of its own responsibility for complying with the Act and this subchapter;

(5) Not abandon such depleted uranium;

(6) ~~Not t[transfer, abandon or dispose of such depleted uranium only by transfer in accordance with sections 30210 and 30210.1 except by transfer to a person holding a specific or general license to receive such material.~~

(7) Within 30 calendar days of any transfer, report in writing to the Department the transferee's name and address.

(c) Persons who possess depleted uranium pursuant to under the general license contained in ~~this section~~ issued pursuant to subsection (a) shall, with respect thereto, be

exempt from the requirements of Group 3 of this subchapter ~~except for Section 30253,~~
~~30254, and 30293(a).~~

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~400275 and~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114965, 114970, 114985(g), 115060, 115165, 115230, and 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

Group 2
Article 7. Reciprocal Recognition of Licenses

(15) Amend Section 30225 to read as follows:

§ 30225. Persons Specifically Licensed by Other Agencies.

(a) Any person who holds a specific license issued by the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC), or by any other Agreement State, or by any state that has been either provisionally or finally designated as a Licensing State by the Conference of Radiation Control Program Directors, Inc. (CRCPD), other than this State, may conduct activities of the kind therein authorized within this State for a period not in excess of 180 days in any calendar year without obtaining a specific license from the ~~department~~Department, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) The person maintains an office for directing the licensed activity, and at which radiation safety records are normally maintained, in a location under jurisdiction of the agency which issued the specific license;

(2) The license does not limit the authorized activity to specified installations or locations;

(3) The person provides written notice to the ~~department~~Department at least ~~3~~three days prior to engaging in such activity. Such notice shall indicate the location, specific time period, and type of proposed possession and use within this state, and shall be accompanied by a copy of the pertinent license. If, for a specific case, the 3-day period would impose an undue hardship on the person, the person may make application to the ~~department~~Department to proceed sooner;

(4) The person complies with all applicable regulations of the ~~department~~Department and with all the terms and conditions of the license, except such terms and conditions which as may be inconsistent with said regulations;

(5) The person supplies such other information as the ~~department~~Department may request; and

(6) The person pays a fee in accordance with section 30230(f) to the Department, prior to the engagement of activities within the state.

(b) Any person who holds a specific license issued by the ~~United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission~~NRC, or by any other Agreement State or by any state that has been either provisionally or finally designated as a Licensing State by the ~~Conference of Radiation Control Program Directors, Inc.~~CRCPD, other than this State, authorizing the holder to manufacture, install or service a device described in section 30192.1(a), shall ~~be~~is hereby issued a general license to install or service such device in this State, provided that ~~the following conditions are satisfied~~:

(1) The person files a report with the ~~d~~Department within 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter in which any device is transferred to or installed in this State, identifying each device recipient by name and address, identifying the type of device transferred or installed, and identifying the quantity and type of radioactive material contained in each device;

(2) The device has been manufactured and labeled and is installed and serviced in accordance with applicable provisions of the specific license;

(3) The person assures that any labels required to be affixed to the device, under regulations of the authority which licensed manufacture of the device, are affixed and bear a statement that "Removal of this label is prohibited;" and

(4) The person furnishes to each device recipient in this State to whom he or she transfers such a device, or on whose premises he or she installs the device, a copy of the regulations contained in Group 1.5 of this subchapter, ~~of~~ and sections 30192.1(a) and (b) of this regulation, ~~and of sections 30253, 30254, 30257, 30293(a)(2) and 30295 of Group 3 of this subchapter, and sections 20.2201 and 20.2202 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 20, incorporated by reference in section 30253.~~

(c) The ~~department~~Department may withdraw, limit, or qualify its acceptance of any license specified in ~~sections 30225~~subsection (a) or (b) upon determining that such action is necessary to protect health or to minimize danger to life or property.

(d) Authorization granted pursuant to this section does not authorize a person to conduct activities in areas within this State that are under exclusive federal jurisdiction.

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~400275~~ 114975, 115000, and 115060 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections 114965, 114970, 114985, 114990,

115060, 115065, 115090, 115093, 115105, 115110, 115120, 115165, 115230, and
115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

(16) Adopt Section 30226 to read as follows:

§ 30226. Persons Generally Licensed by Other Agencies.

(a) A person generally licensed by the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission, or an Agreement State other than this State, is not subject to the registration requirements specified in section 30192.1(d)(1) if the device is used in areas subject to the Department's jurisdiction for a period less than 180 days in any calendar year.

(b) Authorization granted pursuant to this section shall not authorize a person to conduct activities in areas within this State that are under exclusive federal jurisdiction within this State.

Note: Authority cited: Sections 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code.
Reference: Sections 115060, 115230, 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.

**Group 2
 Article 9. Schedules**

(17) Repeal Section 30236 as follows:

§ 30236. Schedule B, Table 1, In Vitro Clinical Tests.

<i>Radionuclide</i>	<i>Maximum Microcuries Per Unit</i>	<i>Maximum Microcuries Total</i>
Hydrogen 3.....	50	2,000
Carbon 14.....	10	2,000
Iron 59.....	20	200
Selenium 75.....	10	200
Cobalt 57.....	10	200
Iodine 125 or Iodine 131.....	10	200
Mock Iodine 125		
Reference Source		
Iodine 129.....	0.05	-
Americium 241.....	0.005	-

Note: Authority cited: Sections 208 and 25811, Health and Safety Code. Reference:
 Sections 25801, 25802, 25811, 25815, 25855, 25875 and 25876, Health and Safety Code.

Group 3

Article 2. Notices, Instructions, and Reports to Workers; Inspections and Investigations

(18) Amend Section 30257 to read as follows:

§ 30257. Bankruptcy Notification.

(a) Each general licensee required to register pursuant to sections 30192.1(d)(1) or 30192.6(b)(1), and each specific licensee, shall notify the Department in writing immediately following the filing of a voluntary or involuntary petition for bankruptcy under any chapter ~~or~~of title 11 (Bankruptcy) of the United States Code (11 U.S.C.) by or against:

- (1) ~~Any~~The licensee;
- (2) An entity (as that term is defined in 11 U.S.C. 101 (14)) controlling the licensee or listing the license as property of the estate; or
- (3) An affiliate (as that term is defined in 11 U.S.C. 101 (2)) of the ~~licensee~~licensee.

(b) ~~This~~The notification to the Department ~~must~~ shall indicate:

- (1) The bankruptcy court in which the petition for bankruptcy was filed; and
- (2) The date of the filing of the petition.

Note: Authority cited: Sections ~~208 and 25811~~ 114975, 115000 and 131200, Health and Safety Code. Reference: Sections ~~28501, 28502, 25815, 25860, 25863, 25875 and 25876~~ 114965, 114970, 115060, 115175, 115205, 115230, 115235, 131050, 131051 and 131052, Health and Safety Code.